© 00 N o o b~ w N

N NN N NN N NN R BP R R R B R R R
oo N o oo M WON P O O 00O N o 00 ON -+, O

DEBRA A. VALENTI NE
General Counse

JOHN D. JACOBS, CA Bar No. 134154
TANYA MAYORKAS, CA Bar No. 189090
Federal Trade Conmi ssion

10877 Wlshire Blvd., Suite 700
Los Angeles, CA 90024

(310) 824-4360 or 824-4317 voice
(310) 824-4380 fax

Attorneys for Plaintiff

UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
CENTRAL DI STRI CT OF CALI FORNI A
WESTERN DI VI SI ON

FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON, CV-99-13114- FMC ( CW)

Plaintiff, STI PULATED FI NAL ORDER FOR
PERVANENT | NJUNCTI ON AND OTHER
V. EQUI TABLE RELI EF

WAZZU CORPCORATI ON, et al .

Def endant s.

N N N N N N N N e N N’

Plaintiff Federal Trade Comm ssion ("Conm ssion") filed a
Conpl ai nt al |l egi ng that Wazzu Corporation ("Wazzu"), Jayne Anmrie,
Kenneth Ghari b, and Kirk Wal df ogel (collectively, "Nanmed
Def endants") had violated Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade
Comm ssion Act ("FTC Act"), as anended, 15 U. S.C. § 45(a). The
parties have agreed to settle this action by entering into this
Stipulated Final Order for Permanent |njunction and O her
Equitable Relief ("Order") without trial or adjudication of any
i ssue of law or fact and wi thout Nanmed Defendants adm tting

l[tability for any of the matters alleged in the Conplaint.
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NOW THEREFORE, on the joint request of the Conm ssion and
Named Defendants, it is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED as

foll ows:

Fl NDI NGS

1. This Court has jurisdiction of the subject matter of
this case and over each Naned Defendant. Venue in the Centra
District of California is proper.

2. The Conpl aint states a clai mupon which relief nay be
grant ed agai nst the Nanmed Def endants under Sections 5(a)(1) and
13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 45(a)(1) and 53(b).

3. The Comm ssion has the authority under Section 13(b) of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 53(b), to seek the relief it has
request ed.

4. The activities of the Named Defendants charged in the
Conmplaint are in or affecting comrerce, as defined in Section 4 of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.

5. The Naned Def endants have wai ved any and all clains
under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U S. C. 8§ 2412, as
anmended by PL 104-121, 110 Stat. 847, 863-64 (1996).

6. Entry of this Order resolves all matters of dispute
bet ween t he Comm ssion and the Naned Defendants arising fromthe
Complaint in this action, up to the date of entry of this Order.

7. The parties waive all rights to seek appellate review or
ot herwi se chal |l enge or contest the validity of this Order. The
Naned Defendants further waive and rel ease any claimthey may have
agai nst the Comm ssion, its enployees, agents, or representatives

arising fromany event that occurred up to entry of this Oder.
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8. This Order is for settlenment purposes only and does not
constitute and shall not be interpreted to constitute an adm ssion
by Naned Defendants that they have engaged in violations of any
| aw or regul ations, including but not limted to the FTC Act, or
that the facts alleged in the Conplaint, other than the
jurisdictional facts, are true.

9. This Order resolves this matter in a manner consi stent
with the public interest.

DEFI NI TI ONS

For purposes of this Oder, the follow ng definitions apply:

A "Def endant s" neans Wazzu Corporation, Jayne Amri e,
Kenneth Gharib and Kirk \Wal df ogel, and their agents, servants,
enpl oyees, attorneys, and all persons or entities directly or
indirectly under the control of any of them and all other persons
or entities in active concert or participation with any of them
who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or
ot herwi se, and each such person

B. "Nanmed Def endants" neans Wazzu Corporation, Jaynme
Amrie, Kenneth CGharib and Kirk \Wal df ogel ;

C. "Corporate Defendant” refers to Naned Def endant WAazzu
Cor por ati on;

D. "Indi vidual Defendant[s]" refers to Naned Defendants
Jayme Amrie, Kenneth CGharib, and Kirk Wl df ogel;

E. "Docunent” is synonynous in neaning and equal in scope
to the usage of the termin Federal Rule of Cvil Procedure 34(a),
and includes witings, draw ngs, graphs, charts, photographs,
audi o and vi deo recordi ngs, conputer records, and other data

conpilations fromwhich informati on can be obtai ned and
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translated, if necessary, through detection devices into
reasonably usable form A draft or non-identical copy is a
separate docunment within the neaning of the term

F. "Material" neans likely to affect a person’s choice of,
or conduct regarding, goods or services;

G "Internet” neans a worl dw de system of |inked conputer
networ ks that use a common protocol (TCP/IP) to deliver and
receive information. The "Internet"” includes but is not limted
to the followng fornms of electronic conunication: file
transfers, electronic mail, the World Wde Wb, newsgroups,

I nternet Relay Chat, audio, and video;

H. "I nternet services" neans any services related to
provi ding access to or advertisenents on the Internet, including
the provision of e-mail or e-nmail to fax service, or creating,
desi gning or hosting any website, webpage, or advertisenents on
the Internet;

| . A "website" is a set of electronic docunents, usually a
home page and subordi nate pages, readily viewable on conputer by
anyone with access to the Internet, standard software, and
knowl edge of the website's |ocation or address; and

J. A "webpage" is a single electronic docunent within a
website, readily viewable on conputer by anyone with access to the
Internet, standard software, and know edge of the webpage’ s or
website's | ocation or address.

K. A "telemarketing sal es vendor" nmeans any conpany in the
busi ness of communi cating with consuners over the tel ephone on

behal f of one or nore third parties for the purpose of giving
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sal es pitches, taking orders, or otherw se marketing, offering for
sale, or selling products or services for such third parties.

L. The term"explicit oral or witten authorization" as
used in Section Il of this Oder nmeans authorization that is
obt ai ned by the consuner providing an unequi vocal and affirmative
act of assent, such as a "yes" answer, in response to each of the
terms set forth in Paragraph A of Section Il--i.e., nethod of
billing and the anmounts to be billed, the anmount of any one-tine
charges, if any, such as a design fee, and the anount and
frequency of any recurring charges, such as hosting or access
fees--in contrast to authorization that may be inferred froma
consuner's silence in response to the proposed transaction or to
any individual termof the proposed transaction.

ORDER
SECTION | .
REPRESENTATI ONS

| T I S THEREFORE ORDERED t hat Defendants, directly or through
any corporation, subsidiary or other entity or internediary, in
connection wth the pronotion, advertising, marketing, sale, or
offering for sale of any Internet services, are hereby permanently
restrai ned and enjoined from

A Fal sely representing, expressly or by inplication, that
Def endants will not charge consuners before the end of any free
trial period for Internet services;

B. Fal sely representing, expressly or by inplication, that
Def endants wi Il not charge consuners who cancel before the end of

any free trial period for Internet services;




© 00 N o o b~ w N

N NN N NN N NN R BP R R R B R R R
oo N o oo M WON P O O 00O N o 00 ON -+, O

C. Fal sely representing, expressly or by inplication, that
a consumer is legally obligated to pay charges for Internet
servi ces;

D. Fal sely representing, expressly or by inplication, any
other material fact in connection with charges for Defendants
| nt ernet services; and

E. Fal sely representing, expressly or by inplication, any
other material fact.

SECTI ON ||
Bl LLI NG

| T I S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Defendants, in connection with any
t el ephone communi cations with a consuner in which any Internet
services are offered, pronoted or sold, are hereby permanently
restrai ned and enjoined, directly or through any corporation,
subsidiary or other entity or internediary, fromsending a bil
for any Internet services to any consuner, or submtting paynment
information to any third party, such as a billing agent, credit
card processing agent, or bank, for processing charges to a
consurer for any Internet services--

A Prior to the expiration of any applicable free-trial
period. Any free-trial period offered by Wazzu pertaining to the
ordering of a website shall commence no earlier than five (5) days
after Wazzu or anyone acting on its behalf mails or otherw se
communi cates to the consuner information sufficient to permt the
consuner to review the ordered website; and

B. Wt hout having first obtained explicit oral or witten
aut hori zation fromthe consuner that the consuner agrees to the

met hod of billing and the anounts to be billed, including the
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anount of any one-tine charges, such as a design fee, and the

anount and frequency of any recurring charges, such as hosting or

access fees.

Provi ded, however, that this Paragraph shall not be

construed to prohibit Defendants from -

(1)

(2)

billing charges to a consunmer's credit card account

nunber if:

(1) the consumer has given explicit oral or witten

authorization to bill the charges to that credit

card account nunber; and

(1i) the credit card is subject to the dispute

resolution requirenents of the Fair Credit Billing

Act and the Truth in Lending Act, as anended; or

billing a consuner in any manner if the Defendants

have, prior to the date of billing, sent the
consuner a witten confirmation of the transaction
to which the consunmer agreed over the tel ephone
that includes all of the follow ng information:

(1) the nmethod of billing to be used,;

(1i) the estimated date on which any one-tine
charges, if any, will be billed to the
consuner or submtted to a third party for
processi ng, and the anount of such charges;

(tiit)the estimated date on which the first
recurring charge, if any, will be billed to
the consunmer or submitted to a third party for
processi ng, and the anmount of such charges;

(tv) the frequency wth which recurring charges, if

any, will be billed to the consuner or
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submtted to a third party for processing, and
t he anobunt of such charges; and

(v) the procedure by which the consuner can
di spute to Wazzu any matter included in the
confirmati on and request a refund or credit of
charges to which the consuner had not agreed.

Provided further that evidence that Defendants have obtained
consuners' credit card nunbers or sent consuners a witten
confirmation in the manner descri bed above will be consi dered but
shal | not necessarily be conclusive in any proceeding to determ ne
whet her the Defendants have violated Section |I.C. of this Oder.

SECTION |11,
CONSUMER REDRESS

| T IS FURTHER ORDERED t hat Naned Def endants shall engage one
or nore independent third-parties (collectively, "Admnistrator"),
approved by the Comm ssion’s representatives, to adm nister a
redress program as described bel ow, at Nanmed Defendants' own
expense:

A Wthin thirty (30) days following entry of this O der,
Named Defendants shall provide the Adm nistrator and the
under si gned counsel for the Commi ssion with an affidavit or
declaration that includes a list of the name and | ast known
address and tel ephone nunber, including the Billing Tel ephone
Nunber ("BTN'), of every consumer qualified to receive a notice
package, as described below. Consuners qualified to receive a
noti ce package include all consuners who either (i) were being
billed for Wazzu’s services through a | ocal exchange carrier

("LEC'") as of June 7, 1999 or (ii) have been LEC billed between

8
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June 7, 1999 and the date the Naned Defendants signed this Order,
with the exception of any consuner--
1. who has converted to credit card billing; or
2. who has converted to paynent by electronic transfer
of funds; or
3. for whoma full credit has been transmtted
directly or through the LEC billing systemfor al
charges for Wazzu's Internet services; or
4. who has, after the expiration of their thirty-day
free trial period, engaged their website
adm ni stration feature; or
5. who has, after the expiration of their thirty-day
free trial period, engaged their e-mail address
sel ection feature.
Named Defendants may generate the list of qualified consuners by
using information in Wazzu' s custoner database records, provided
that one of the individual Defendants with personal know edge
provi des an affidavit or declaration that truthfully states: (i)
whet her there is any reason to believe that the information or
met hod used may not or did not generate an accurate |ist of
consuners qualified to receive a notice package; and (ii) if
appl i cabl e, how and the extent to which the information or nethod
used did not or may not generate an accurate list. |[If a neans
other than using information in Wazzu' s custoner database records
is used, the affidavit or declaration shall state the nethod that
was used to generate the list of qualified consuners.
B. Wthin sixty (60) days following entry of this Oder,

the Adm nistrator shall mail a notice package to every consuner
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identified on the list of consuners qualified to receive a notice
package. The notice package, which shall have been approved in
advance by the Conmi ssion’s representatives, shall consist of a
witten notice, reply form and self-addressed postage-paid return
envel ope addressed to Wazzu at an address nmi ntained by the

Adm nistrator. The Adm nistrator shall retain a sanple of the
actual formletter, including the enclosures, that is sent to
consuners, to be provided to Comm ssion counsel upon request, and
records show ng the date on which the mailings were sent.

C. The Adm ni strator shall keep records show ng the nanes
of consuners whose notice packages are returned by the Post Ofice
as undeliverable and shall nake a reasonable effort to obtain
val id addresses for such consuners so that the notice packages can
be re-mailed, including placing a call to the BTN provided by the
Naned Defendants and asking for a current address, and using the
Nat i onal Change of Address registry.

D. The Adm ni strator shall review and eval uate consuners
eligibility for redress in accordance with the criteria set forth
below. To the extent that a consuner’s eligibility cannot be
determ ned solely fromthe consuner’s reply form the
Adm ni strator shall call the consunmer and nake a foll ow up attenpt
to make the determ nation. A consuner shall be determ ned
eligible for redress if the consuner:

1. Returns a signed reply formpostmarked within forty
(40) days follow ng the date on which the notice package was
mai |l ed to the consuner; and

2. I ndi cates on the reply formthat the consunmer wants

to cancel Wazzu' s service or halt all charges; and
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3. Provi des an explanation on the reply formas to the
reason the consuner wants to cancel Wazzu' s service; and

4. Indicates in either the explanation on the reply
form or, if the explanation on the reply formis insufficient to
determine eligibility, in a subsequent statenent signed under
penalty of perjury and provided to the Adm nistrator, that:

a. one or nore unauthorized charges for Wazzu's
servi ces appeared on the consuner’s tel ephone
bill; or

b. t he consuner canceled within Wazzu's free
trial period but was nonethel ess charged; or

C. the consunmer was charged for Wazzu’' s services
even though he was told he woul d not be
charged unl ess he notified Wazzu after the
free trial period that he wanted to conti nue
with the service; or

d. t he consunmer was charged even though he never
received any witten materials or any
notification that his Wazzu website was
avail abl e for review

E. Wthin one hundred forty (140) days follow ng entry of
this Order, the Adm nistrator shall provide to Comm ssion counsel
and to Naned Defendants (i) a list of consuners that the
Adm ni strator has determned to be eligible to receive redress
(the "prelimnary eligibility list"), and (ii) copies of all reply
forms and other witten statenments received from consuners.

F. Naned Defendants may review the prelimnary eligibility

list and elimnate fromthe |ist the name of any consumer who has

11
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al ready been issued a full credit or refund, provided that the
Named Defendants first provide Conm ssion counsel an affidavit or
declaration truthfully stating that, with respect to each consuner
whose nane the Naned Defendants have renoved fromthe prelimnary
eligibility list, Wazzu has already (i) arranged for the
appropriate billing agent or service to transmt a full credit to
the consuner; (ii) provided a full credit or refund directly to
the consuner; or (iii) received information, fromeither a billing
service or a LEC, indicating that a full credit has been provided
to the consuner.

G Naned Defendants shall, within thirty (30) days
followng receipt of the prelimnary eligibility Iist fromthe
Adm ni strator, take all steps necessary to (i) arrange for the
appropriate billing agent or service to transmt a full credit to
each consuner whose nanme was included on the prelimnary
eligibility list and not elimnated pursuant to the preceding
Par agraph, or (ii) provide full credits or refunds directly to
such consuners. Naned Defendants shall make and keep records
reflecting the efforts taken to effectuate the credits or refunds,
and shall, between thirty (30) and forty-five (45) days follow ng
receipt of the list of eligible consuners fromthe Adm nistrator,
prepare an affidavit or declaration stating the efforts taken to
conply with this Paragraph.

H. The Adm nistrator shall, between thirty (30) and sixty
(60) days after providing the prelimnary eligibility list to
Naned Defendants, review the efforts taken by Naned Defendants to
ensure that Naned Defendants have taken the necessary steps to

conply with Paragraph G above.

12
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| . The Adm nistrator shall, wthin twenty (20) business
days of conpleting the review described in Paragraph H above,
provide a report to the Conm ssion and to Named Defendants
describing the efforts taken by the Adm nistrator and the results
of its review of the Naned Defendants’ efforts to conply with
Par agraph G above.
J. Naned Defendants are responsible for ensuring that the
Adm nistrator perforns all tasks as specified in this Section.
Shoul d the Adm nistrator be unable or fail to conply with any
provision in this Section, Naned Defendants shall make alternative
arrangenents, subject to the approval of the Comm ssion or its
representatives, for tinely acconplishnent of such tasks.
K. Wthin fifteen (15) business days of receiving fromthe
Adm ni strator the report required by Paragraph I, above, the
Comm ssi on shall either—
(1) provide witten notice to counsel for Naned
Def endants, and to the Escrow Agent naned in the
Escrow Agreenent attached hereto as Attachnent A
hol di ng $12,932.41 in escrow to secure paynent of
redress under this Section, that the funds are
di vested and nay be returned to the Naned
Def endants; or
(2) provide witten notice to counsel for Naned
Def endants and to the Court that the Comm ssion is
nmoving the Court to require Nanmed Defendants to
show cause why they should not be held in contenpt

for their failure to conply with this Section.
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In the event the Court finds that Named Defendants have not
conplied with Paragraph G of this Section, funds held in escrow
pursuant to the Escrow Agreenent set forth in Attachnment A shal
be released to the Commi ssion in the anmpbunt necessary to provide
refunds to all consuners who were to receive credits or refunds
pursuant to Paragraph G but who have not in fact received such
credits or refunds. The Conm ssion shall then use such funds to
provi de refunds to such consuners. Any funds remaining in escrow
after all eligible consuners have received full refunds shall be
di vested and returned to the Nanmed Defendants.

SECTI ON | V.

RECORDKEEPI NG

| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of three (3) years
fromthe date of entry of this Order, corporate Defendant Wazzu
and each individual Defendant in connection with any business
where the Defendant individually or jointly with any other
i ndi vidual Defendant is the majority owner of the business or
directly or indirectly manages or controls the business and where
t he busi ness engages in the pronotion, marketing, offering for
sale, or sale of Internet services, are hereby restrained and
enjoined fromfailing to create or maintain the foll ow ng:

A Books, records and accounts which, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the cost of goods or services sold,
and the incone, disbursenents, transactions and use of funds.

B. Records accurately reflecting the followng: (i) the
name, address, and phone nunber of each person who the business
enpl oys in any capacity, each person the business retains as a

directly hired i ndependent contractor to conduct or assist with
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tel emarketing, each telemarketing sales vendor directly retained
by the business, and each tel emarketing sal es vendor that has been
retained by any third party wth which the business has contracted
for the purpose of managi ng, supervising or contracting with

tel emarketing sales vendors; and (ii) if a person, that person's
job title or position; (iii) the date upon which the person or
conpany commenced work; and (iv) the date and reason for the
person's or conpany’'s termnation, if applicable. Defendants
shal|l retain such records for any term nated enpl oyee or conpany
for a period of two years followi ng the date of term nation

C. Records containing the nanes, addresses, phone nunbers,
and dol | ar anounts paid, for all consuners to whom Naned
Def endants have sold Internet services.

D. Records that contain or reflect, for every witten
consuner conplaint or refund request, whether received directly or
indirectly or through any third party, including conplaints and
refund requests submtted by mail, courier, fax or e-mail, and for
every oral consuner conplaint or refund request conveyed by
consuners cal ling any tel ephone nunber provided by the business
for custoner service inquiries:

1. The consuner's nane, address, and tel ephone nunber
and the dollar anmount paid by the consuner;

2. The witten conplaint or refund request, if any,
and the date of the conplaint or refund request;

3. The basis of the conplaint, including the nanme of
any sal esperson conpl ai ned agai nst, and the nature
and result of any investigation conducted

concerning the validity of the conplaint;
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4. Each response by the business and the date of the
response;
5. Any final resolution and the date of the
resol ution; and
6. In the event of a denial of a refund request, the
reason for the denial.
E. Copies of all (i) telemarketing sales scripts,
(1i) telemarketing training packets, (iii) witten communi cations,
with any tel emarketing sal es vendor retained by the business or
with any third party with which the business has contracted for
t he purpose of managi ng, supervising or contracting with
i ndependent tel emarketing sal es vendors, regarding representations
to consuners, obtaining authorization fromconsuners, or
tel emarketing sal es techniques or practices, and (iv) the caller-
paid and/or toll-free tel ephone nunbers utilized by the business
in furtherance of any tel emarketing of Internet services.
F. All contracts and agreenents with any tel emarketing
sal es vendor retained by the business or with any third party with
whi ch the business has contracted for the purpose of nanagi ng,
supervising or contracting with independent tel emarketing sal es
vendor s.
| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that all docunents that are required to
be created or maintained under this Section shall be retained for
three (3) years following the date on which the docunent was
created or cane into the Nanmed Defendant's possession, custody or

contr ol
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SECTI ON V.
DI STRI BUTI ON OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS
| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of three (3) years
fromthe date of entry of this Order, corporate Defendant Wazzu
and each individual Defendant in connection with any business
where the Defendant individually or jointly with any other
i ndi vi dual Defendant is the majority owner of the business or
directly or indirectly manages or controls the business and where
t he busi ness engages in the pronotion, marketing, offering for
sale, or sale of Internet services, shall:
A Pr ovi de:
1. a copy of this Order to each officer and director
of the business, and each individual at the
busi ness serving in a managenent capacity, within
ten (10) business days of entry of this Oder and
thereafter immedi ately upon enpl oyi ng or retaining
any such persons, and within ten (10) business days
of providing a copy of this Order pursuant to this
Par agraph obtain a signed and dated acknow edgment
of receipt of sanme fromeach person to whomit is
required to be distributed; and
2. an accurate summary, conformng to the nodel set
forth in Attachnent B, of Section | of the Oder to
each person or conpany the business enploys in a
tel emarketing capacity, to each person the business
retains as a directly hired i ndependent contractor
to conduct or assist with tel emarketing, to each

tel emarketing sal es vendor directly retained by the
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busi ness, and to each third party with which the

busi ness has contracted for the purpose of

managi ng, supervising or contracting with

tel emarketing sales vendors, wthin ten (10)

busi ness days of entry of this Order and thereafter

i mredi at el y upon enpl oying or retaining any such

persons, and obtain a signed and dated

acknow edgnent of receipt of same, wthin ten (10)

busi ness days of providing the summary pursuant to

t his Paragraph, fromeach person to whomit is

required to be distributed,
Provi ded, however, that the Defendants shall, upon the
request of any person who has received a summary
pursuant to this Paragraph, pronptly provide such person
with a copy of the conplete Order; and provided further
t hat Named Defendants shall be jointly and severally
l[iable to conply with this Paragraph, such that only one
copy of this Order, or a summary thereof, need be
distributed to any particul ar person.

B. Maintain for a period of three (3) years after creation,
and upon reasonabl e notice nake available to representatives of
the Comm ssion, the original signed and dated acknow edgnents of
the receipts of copies of this Order or the summary required in
Par agraph A of this Section.

SECTI ON VI .
MONI TORI NG COVPLI ANCE OF SALES PERSONNEL
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat corporate Defendant Wazzu, and

each individual Defendant in connection with any busi ness where
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the Defendant individually or jointly with any other i ndividual
Defendant is the majority owner of the business or directly or
indirectly manages or controls the business and where the business
engages in the pronotion, marketing, offering for sale, or sale of
| nternet services, are hereby permanently restrai ned and enj oi ned
from

A Failing to take reasonable steps sufficient to nonitor
and ensure that all persons and conpani es that engage or
participate in tel emarketing sales, billing, or responding to
consuner conplaints with respect to Internet services offered by
Wazzu or the Defendant, are conplying with Sections | and Il of
this Order. Such steps shall include, at a mnimm the
followng: (1) refusing to honor, accept, conpensate for, or bil
any consuner for, any sale of Internet services submtted fromor
t hrough any enpl oyee, any tel emarketing sales vendor directly
retai ned by the business, or any other conpany with which the
busi ness has contracted for the purpose of managi ng, supervising
or contracting with tel emarketing sal es vendors, that has not
received a copy of this Order or a summary conformng to
Attachment B of this Oder; (2) nmaintaining a procedure for
recei ving and responding to consuner conplaints; and (3) for each
enpl oyee, telemarketing sales vendor, or third party with which
t he busi ness has contracted for the purpose of managi ng,
supervising or contracting with tel emarketi ng sal es vendors that
is inplicated in a consunmer conplaint, ascertaining the nunber and
nature of consumer conplaints regarding transactions in which the

enpl oyee, tel emarketing sales vendor or third party is involved;
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B. Failing pronptly to investigate fully any consumner
conplaint relating to tel emarketing received by the business;

C. Failing to take corrective action with respect to any
sal es person or any tel emarketing sal es vendor whom t he Def endant
has reason to believe has made m srepresentations to consuners or
has determned is not acting in accordance with the requirenents
of Section | of this Order, which may include training,

di sciplining, refusing to do further business with, and/or
term nating such sal es person or vendor, provided that this
Section does not authorize or require Defendants to take any steps
that violate any federal, state, or |ocal |aws.
SECTI ON VI | .
COVPLI ANCE REPORTI NG BY DEFENDANTS

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that, in order that conpliance with the
provi sions of this Order may be nonitored:

A The individual Defendants shall, for a period of three
(3) years fromthe date of entry of this Order, notify the
Comm ssi on of :

1. Any changes in the Defendant’s residence, mailing
address, and tel ephone nunbers, within ten (10) business days of
t he date of such change; and

2. Any changes in the Defendant’s enpl oynent status
(i ncluding self-enploynent) within ten (10) days of such change.
Such notice shall include the nane and address of each business
that the Defendant is affiliated with or enployed by, a statenent
of the nature of the business, and a statenent of the Defendant’s
duties and responsibilities in connection with the business or

enpl oynent ;
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B. Naned Defendants shall notify the Comm ssion of any
proposed change in the structure of Wazzu, such as dissol ution,
assi gnnent, sale, nerger, creation or dissolution of subsidiaries,
proposed filing of a bankruptcy petition, or change in the
corporate nane or address, or any other change that may affect
conpliance obligations arising out of this Oder, thirty (30) days
prior to the effective date of any proposed change; provided,
however, that, with respect to any proposed change in the
corporation about which Nanmed Defendants learn | ess than thirty
(30) days prior to the date such action is to take place, or that
is to occur less than thirty (30) days after the final decision to
make such change has been nmade, Naned Defendants shall notify the
Comm ssion as soon as is practicable after |earning of such
proposed change or the final decision to make such change has been
made;

C. One hundred eighty (180) days after the date of entry of
this Order, Named Defendants shall provide a witten report to the
FTC, sworn to under penalty of perjury, setting forth in detai

the manner and formin which they are conplying with this O der

and, with the exception of Section IlIl, have conplied with this
Order.  This report shall include but not be limted to:
1. The Defendant’s then current residence address and

t el ephone nunber;

2. The Defendant’s then current enploynent, business
addresses and tel ephone nunbers, a description of the business
activities of each such enployer, and the Defendant’s title and

responsibilities for each enpl oyer;
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3. A copy of each acknow edgnent of receipt of this
Order, and each sunmary thereof, obtained by Defendant pursuant to

Section V of this Oder;

4. A statenent describing the manner in which the
Def endant has conplied and is conplying with Sections | and Il of
this O der;
D. Upon witten request by a representative of the

Comm ssi on, Naned Defendants shall submt additional witten
reports (under oath, if requested) and produce docunents on twenty
(20) business days' notice, or such other nutually agreed to
period of tinme, with respect to any conduct subject to this O der,
subject to the Defendants’ right to seek a protective order from
the court for good cause shown;

E. For the purposes of this Order, Naned Defendants shall,
unl ess otherw se directed by the Comm ssion's authorized
representatives, nmail all witten notifications to the Conm ssion
t o:

Assi st ant Regi onal Director
Federal Trade Conm ssion
10877 Wlshire Blvd., Suite 700
Los Angeles, CA 90024

Re: FTC v. Wazzu

F. For purposes of the conpliance reporting required by
this Section, the Comm ssion is authorized to communicate with
Def endant s’ under si gned counsel, Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison LLP
unl ess and until the undersigned counsel advises the Comm ssion,
in accordance with Paragraph E of this Section, that
communi cati ons regardi ng conpliance reporting should be directed

to anot her specified party.
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SECTION VIII.
COW SSION' S AUTHORI TY TO MONI TOR COMPLI ANCE

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat the Conm ssion is authorized to
nmoni tor the Nanmed Defendants’ conpliance with this Order by all
[ awful means. Such neans include, but are not limted to,
obt ai ni ng di scovery, wi thout further |eave of court but with
tinmely witten notice to Nanmed Defendants pursuant to Fed. R QG v.
P. 5, fromany person in the manner provided by Chapter V of the
Federal Rules of Cvil Procedure, Fed. R Cv. P. 26 - 37,

i ncludi ng the use of conpul sory process pursuant to Fed. R Cv.

P. 45, for the purpose of nonitoring and investigating Named

Def endants’ conpliance with any provision of this Order, subject
to Rules 26(c), 45(c) and any other provision of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure providing the person with the right to seek
relief fromthe Court.

Nothing in this Order shall Iimt the Conmm ssion's | awful use
of conpul sory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC
Act, 15 U.S.C. 88 49, 57b-1, to investigate whether any of the
Naned Defendants has violated any provision of this Order or
Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U. S.C. § 45.

SECTI ON | X.
ACCESS TO BUSI NESS PREM SES

| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of three (3) years
fromthe date of entry of this Oder, for the purpose of further
determ ning conpliance with this Oder, Named Defendants shal
permt representatives of the Comm ssion, within three (3)

busi ness days of receipt of witten notice fromthe Conm ssion:
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A Access during normal business hours to Wazzu's offices
or any facility storing its docunents. In providing such access,
Named Defendants shall permt representatives of the Comm ssion to
i nspect and copy all docunents relevant to any matter contained in
this Oder; and shall permt Conm ssion representatives to renove
(1) non-business critical docunents relevant to any matter
contained in this Order for a period not to exceed five (5)
busi ness days, and (ii) docunents deened business critical by
Wazzu for a period not to exceed twenty-four (24) hours or such
ot her period as agreed to by Wazzu and the Comm ssion’s
representatives, so that the docunents nmay be inspected,
inventoried, and copied, with all docunents renoved to be returned
to Wazzu in good order. Provided that, upon application of the
Comm ssion and for good cause shown, the Court may enter an ex
parte order granting i medi ate access to Wazzu's busi ness prem ses
for the purposes of inspecting and copying all docunents rel evant
to any matter contained in this Oder.

B. To interview, at Wazzu's place of business or a
simlarly convenient |ocation, the officers, directors, and
enpl oyees, including all personnel involved in responding to
consuner conplaints or inquiries, and all sal es personnel, whether
desi gnat ed as enpl oyees, consultants, independent contractors or
ot herwi se, of Wazzu concerning nmatters relating to conpliance with
the terns of this Order, upon witten request by a representative
of the Comm ssion through Wazzu's counsel. The person intervi ewed

may have counsel present.
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SECTI ON X.
ACKNOALEDGVENT OF RECEI PT
| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that, within five (5) business days
after Nanmed Defendants receive this Order as entered by the Court,
each Named Defendant shall submit to the Commi ssion a truthfu
sworn and notarized statenent, in the form show on Appendi x 1,
that shall acknow edge receipt of this Final Oder.
SECTI ON XI .
| NDEPENDENCE OF OBLI GATI ONS
| T IS FURTHER ORDERED that the expiration of any requirenents
i nposed by this Order shall not affect any other obligation
arising under this Order.
SECTI ON XII.
COSTS AND ATTORNEYS FEES
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat each party to this Order bear its
own costs and attorneys fees incurred in connection with this
action.

I 1
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SECTION XII 1.

RETENTI ON OF JURI SDI CTI ON

| T I S FURTHER ORDERED t hat thi
jurisdiction of this matter for all

STI PULATED AND AGREED BY:

Dat ed:

Dat ed:

Dat ed:

Dat ed:

Dat ed:

I T IS SO ORDERED
Dat ed:
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s Court shall retain

pur poses.

FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON
John D. Jacobs
Tanya Mayor kas

Attorneys for Plaintiff

WAZZU CORPORATI ON
By:

Jayme Amrie, Chief
Executive Oficer

Jayme Amrie
Def endant

Kenneth Ghari b
Def endant

Kirk Wl df ogel
Def endant

COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANTS

M chael B. G een

Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison
LLP

Attorneys for Defendants

One Market, Spear Street Tower
San Francisco, CA 94105
(415) 442-0900

United States District Judge




[ ATTACHVENT A]
ESCROW AGREEMENT

WHEREAS Wazzu Corporation, Jayme Amirie, Kenneth Gharib, and Kirk Waldfogel
("Defendants") have offered to settle charges of alleged violations of the Federal Trade Commission
Act by signing and agreeing to entry of the proposed Stipulated Final Order for Permanent
Injunction and Other Equitable Relief ("proposed Order") attached to this Escrow Agreement as
Exhibit 1, and staff of the Los Angeles office of the Western Region of the Federal Trade
Commission have agreed, contingent upon the Defendants' appropriate execution of this Escrow
Agreement and transfer of funds into escrow, to recommend to the Federal Trade Commission
("Commission") that it authorize staff to file the proposed Order with the United States District
Court for the Central District of California ("District Court") as settlement of such charges,

WHEREAS the proposed Order provides that Defendants will issue credits or refundsto
qualified consumers who appropriately complete and submit reply forms establishing they are
eligible under the terms of the proposed Order for credits or refunds;

WHEREAS Defendants have agreed to pay $12,932.41 into an escrow account not later
than five (5) business days after Defendants sign the proposed Order and have agreed that such
funds shall be held there pending approval of the proposed Order by the Federal Trade Commission
and entry of the proposed Order by the District Court, and, in the event the proposed Order is
entered by the District Court, distributed in accordance with its terms;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants, agreements
and conditions contained in this Escrow Agreement, the Defendants and FTC staff do hereby agree
asfollows:

1 Southern California Bank Escrow agrees to serve as the Escrow Agent. The
Defendants shall transfer $12,932.41 to the Escrow Agent, within five business days after they have
signed the proposed Order, by electronic transfer or certified or cashier’s check. The Escrow Agent
shall hold this sum (the "Escrow Fund") in trust for consumers, for distribution in accordance with
the terms of this Escrow Agreement.

2. It is understood and agreed by the parties to this Escrow Agreement that by signing
this Escrow Agreement, the Defendants relinquish all dominion, control and title to the Escrow
fund, and that all legal and equitable title to the Escrow fund is vested in consumers eligible to
receive redress as set forth under the terms of the proposed Order; subject to being divested under
the following circumstances:

a. in the event the proposed Order is rejected by the Commission or the District
Court; or
b. in the event the proposed Order is approved by the Commission and entered

by the District Court and, pursuant to Section 111 of the Order, the
Commission notifies the Escrow Agent and counsel for the Defendants that
the Escrow fund is divested and that all monies in the Escrow fund may be
returned to Defendants.

Provided that in the event that the Escrow fund is used to pay refunds to consumers pursuant to
Section I11.K of the Order, any funds remaining in escrow after all eligible consumers have received
full refunds shall be divested and returned to the Named Defendants.

3. The Defendants agree not to make a claim to or demand for the return of the Escrow
fund, directly or indirectly, unless the Escrow fund or any part thereof is divested as described in the

27



preceding paragraph of this Escrow Agreement. In the event of bankruptcy of any Defendant such
Defendant agrees to acknowledge and verify in an appropriate manner to the bankruptcy court or to
any other authority, and hereby also acknowledges and verifies, that neither the Escrow fund nor
any part thereof is part of the debtor’ s estate, and that the estate does not have any claim or interest
therein.

4, In the event the proposed Order is approved by the Commission and entered by the
Digtrict Court, the Escrow Agent shall not distribute or return any portion of the Escrow fund prior
to receiving either notice from the Commission that the Escrow fund is divested and that all monies
in the Escrow fund may be returned to Defendants, or a copy of an order from the District Court
directing the Escrow Agent to release funds to the Commission or to distribute al or any portion of
the funds in any other manner. In the event the Escrow Agent receives notice from the Commission
that the Escrow fund is divested and that all monies in the Escrow fund may be returned to
Defendants, the Escrow Agent shall return all monies in the Escrow fund to the Defendants. Inthe
event the Escrow Agent receives a copy of an order from the District Court regarding disposition of
all or any portion of the Escrow fund, the Escrow Agent shall comply with the requirements of the
order.

5. The escrow shall be irrevocable, and the Escrow fund shall be used for no purpose
other than providing refunds as set forth in the Stipulated Final Order. Any interest earned on the
escrow principal during the pendency of the escrow shall accrue to the Escrow fund and shall be
paid out, and shall be subject to being divested, in the same manner as the principal.
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In witness whereof, each of the parties has caused this Escrow Agreement to be executed, in
the case of the individually defendants, personally, and, in the case of the corporate defendant, on its

behalf by its duly authorized representative.

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Dated:

Jayme Amirie
Individual Defendant

Kenneth Gharib
Individual Defendant

Kirk Waldfogel
Individual Defendant

WAZZU CORPORATION
By:

Jayme Amirie, Chief
Executive Officer

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
By:

John D. Jacobs
Attorney for Plaintiff

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
BANK ESCROW

By:

Escrow Agent
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[ATTACHMENT B]
NOTICE TO SALES PERSONNEL

A federal court order, which was entered without any finding or admission of wrongdoing,
prohibits Wazzu Corporation, Jayme Amirie, Kenneth Gharib and Kirk Waldfogel, and their
employees, and all other personsin active concert or participation with them who receive actual
notice of the following requirements, from making any misrepresentation of material fact, either
expressly or by implication, orally or in writing, in connection with the promotion, advertising,
marketing, offering for sale, or sale of Internet services.

The order specifically prohibits making any of the following representations, unless the

representation istrue at the time it is made:

A. Consumers will not be charged before the end of any free trial period for Internet
services,;
B. Consumers who cancel before the end of any free trial period for Internet services

will not be charged ; and

C. A consumer is legally obligated to pay charges for Internet services.

You must comply with these prohibitions. A copy of the court order is
available upon request. Theorder wasissued in_FTC v. Wazzu Corp., CV-99-
13114-FM C (CWx) (U.S. District Court, C.D. Cal.), in a case brought by the
Federal Trade Commission. Theorder was entered without any finding or

admission of wrongdoing.
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[ APPENDI X 1]

UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
CENTRAL DI STRI CT OF CALI FORNI A
WESTERN DI VI SI ON

FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON, CV-99-13114- FMC ( CW)

Plaintiff, AFFI DAVI T OF DEFENDANT [ NANE]
AFFI RM NG RECEI PT OF STI PULATED
V. FI NAL ORDER

WAZZU CORPORATI ON, et al .,

Def endant s.

N N N N N N N N e N N’

|, [nane], being duly sworn, hereby states and affirns as

fol |l ows:
1. My nanme is [nane]. My current residence address is
| ama citizen of the
United States and am over the age of eighteen. | have personal

know edge of the facts set forth in this Affidavit.

2. | am a defendant in FTC v. Wazzu Corporation, et al.

(United States District Court for the Central District of
California, Western Division, CV-99-13114 FMO).

3. On [date], | received a copy of the STIPULATED FI NAL
ORDER FOR PERMANENT | NJUNCTI ON AND OTHER EQUI TABLE RELI EF,
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whi ch was signed by the Honorabl e Fl orence-Marie Cooper and
entered by the Court on [date of entry of Order]. A true and
correct copy of the Order | received is appended to this
Affidavit.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the |laws of the
United States that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on

[date], at [city and state].

[ si gnat ur €]
[ nane

State of , Gty of

Subscri bed and sworn to before me
this day of , 20

Notary Public
My Comm ssi on Expires:
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